
301 E. Huron St.

Ann Arbor, MI  48104

http://a2gov.legistar.com/

Calendar.aspx

City of Ann Arbor

Formal Minutes - Final

Planning Commission, City

7:00 PM Washtenaw County Building, 220 N. Main St., board roomTuesday, December 2, 2014

14-170810-b 2250 Ann Arbor-Saline Road Annexation, Zoning and Site Plan - A 

proposal to annex this vacant 5.34 acre parcel from Pittsfield Township, 

zone it R4B (Multiple-Family Dwelling District) and construct one building 

containing 75 dwelling units, exercise room, community room and indoor 

pool.  The units will be a mix of one (20), two (53) and three (2) bedroom 

units. The proposal includes constructing 84 exterior parking spaces and 

70 parking spaces under the structure.  A storm water detention basin will 

be located in the rear of the site. The basin will be oversized to 

accommodate additional offsite water runoff from the north. (Ward 4) Staff 

Recommendation:  Approval

Kowalski presented the staff report.

PUBLIC HEARING:

Barry Gates, 2017 Marra Drive, Ann Arbor, said he lived directly north 

from the proposed development, and his wife is the President of The 

Meadows Association. He spoke on behalf of the Meadows Association. 

He asked who is going to pay for the cost of the regional detention basin, 

noting that the staff report references a development agreement that he 

found to be unclear on the matter. He said association members walk the 

area down to Village Oaks during heavy rains and have seen that the 

area that is proposed for the location of the gated entrance from Lambeth, 

regularly has water flowing across the area. He said a lot of water pours off 

from the nursing home detention area, and they don’t want a dam created 

that would push water upstream. He asked whether provisions have been 

made, since the water flows over the roadway and entrance, and what that 

provision is.

Ken Timmer, 2112 Ascot Road, said he and his wife have lived there for 

40 years. He said he appreciated the sensitivity shown by the 

Commission to items such as zoning islands and traffic increases. He 

referred attention to the aerial view showing zoning of the subject parcel, 

as well as all the parcels surrounding it. He said they are all zoned R2 or 

R1, with the exception of the nursing home, which is R4B, which has 

minimal traffic and is a modest 2-story structure. He said it’s not 

surprising that everything is single-family or two-family residential 

Page 1City of Ann Arbor



December 2, 2014Planning Commission, City Formal Minutes - Final

because that was the Master Plan when this area was established, and all 

extensions of land have honored that commitment. He said Delaware and 

Chaucer were extended but were single family cul-de-sacs; Marra and 

Village Oaks were built with single family structures, with single driveways 

going to streets designed for residential living with winding curves, and 

parked cars. He said now we have a proposal that is not single-family but 

a 4-story, 75-unit condominium structure that has its driveway going right 

into Lambeth, Ascot and Chaucer. He said the plan shows 79 parking 

spaces under the structure, with the closest route leaving the structure 

going out Lambeth, and in order for cars to get onto Ann Arbor-Saline 

Road, they have to go all around the building. He said he lives right at the 

end of Lambeth and all those headlights are going to go right by his 

living-room window, and down the street where they always have bikers 

and walkers. He said not having a traffic safety analysis done is not 

responsible on the developer’s part or the City’s part, and it is not what 

Ann Arbor is all about.

Robert Parnes, 2067 Ascot Road, Ann Arbor, read from a prepared 

statement, which was also submitted to the Commission. He expressed 

opposition to the cut through connection to Lambeth Drive and the added 

traffic. He said he understood that the cut through was not essential to the 

long-term success of the condo project, and the fire department says it’s 

not essential since they have access. He said he believes the developer 

wants to give condo occupants convenient access to the north and west, 

through using their street, and being able to access Scio Church Road. 

He noted that when streets are used as cut throughs, it increases traffic 

and decreases safety and property values. He said he has tried to think of 

benefits from the cut through to the existing neighbors but can’t think of 

any, and with the one-way security gate proposed, the neighbors won’t be 

able to use the cut through to speed their connections going east and to 

Ann Arbor Saline Road. He said the benefits seem to be all for the 

developer, and he urged the Commission to deny the cut through to 

Lambeth.

Judith Hanway, 2059 Ascot Road, Ann Arbor, said she has lived there 

since 1987 and is opposed to a cut-through to Lambeth, because it will 

increase traffic. She said the appeal of living here is that the street is a 

half circle with no outlets to other streets, so there is no reason to drive 

down the street unless one lives there or has a delivery on the street and 

is therefore clear of extraneous traffic. She said the curve in the street 

means limited sight distance and is exacerbated during football 

Saturdays when cars line both sides of the street and in the winter when 

snow piles up. She said she believed the proposed gate will be 

Page 2City of Ann Arbor



December 2, 2014Planning Commission, City Formal Minutes - Final

abandoned over time and left open, which will leave a flood of traffic to 

overwhelm their street. She noted that the Fire Department does not 

require the cut-through and will only be disadvantageous to their 

neighborhood. She said she has issues with the amount of impervious 

surface proposed on the site plan, noting that they need less pavement 

and not more, in order to address the issues with stormwater; abandoning 

the Lambeth connection would reduce impervious surface. She said the 

existing vegetation that currently absorbs run-off would be stripped and 

even while the developer is proposing to plant new vegetation, it will take 

a long time for the roots to develop. She said she is concerned about the 

detention area location and expressed concern with it being too close to 

adjoining properties. She asked who will be responsible for maintain the 

detention area, adding that this has been a problem in the past, and lack 

of maintained ponds has caused flooding in their neighborhood. She said 

during heavy rainfall there is knee-deep water on the proposed site, and 

she asked the Commission to consider the negative impact the proposed 

project would have on the existing neighborhood.

Frank Burdick, 2049 Winsted Blvd, Ann Arbor, said he also lives in 

Lansdowne, and agreed with all the previous comments on the Lambeth 

cut-through. He said the sanitary sewer needs to be inspected before any 

construction begins, noting that the manholes have been infiltrated since 

they were installed. He said the required 21 footing drain disconnects will 

be difficult to acquire as people are not willing to accept being 

disconnected, given the bad press and current lawsuits. He said he is 

highly opposed to the footing drain disconnects as well as the project.

Mae Keller, 498 Village Oaks Ct. Ann Arbor, said the stormwater 

problems are worse than anyone can imagine, and she has nothing to 

say about the cut-through, but wants everyone to know how important the 

detention pond is to solve the problems. She said it is proposed to be 

located close to the houses because that is where the water is. She said 

she has stood in chest-deep water to clear drains. She said it flows from 

the woods and because the soil is clay it doesn’t absorb it. She said this 

issue is the subject of a study by the City, and the proposed detention 

pond represents an opportunity to improve the situation, and she is very 

distressed to hear comments from others who are not affected by the 

stormwater issues speak against this proposal. She asked the 

Commission to take into consideration the current stormwater issues in 

their deliberations.

Greg Herbert, 2058 Ascot Road, Ann Arbor, said he has two 

grandchildren that spend time with them. He said the staff report is not 

Page 3City of Ann Arbor



December 2, 2014Planning Commission, City Formal Minutes - Final

correct in that there will be no impact to the Lansdowne neighborhood. He 

said that is true only if there is no connection to Lambeth. He said all the 

people in his neighborhood, including him, have sacrificed by driving 

north in order to go south to get to Ann Arbor Saline Road to protect the 

children, and he would like to have the people in this proposed 

development make the same sacrifice. He said if the connection 

happens, all the traffic will use the cut-through and put the children at risk. 

He said the gate will come down eventually and he begged the 

Commission not to approve a cut-through to Lambeth. 

Steve Harler, 2134 Ascot Road, Ann Arbor, said he was shocked about 

how disingenuous the proposed project is; claiming 25 traffic movements 

when they have 154 parking spaces, proposing a volleyball court but 

marketing the condos to seniors. He said if you look at the overall view of 

the streets you can see the V-shape of Scio Church Road and Ann Arbor 

Saline Road with the linkage becoming the most direct cut-through 

everyone will use, and he believes the developer is prepared to spend the 

additional funds for the cut-through access because he will be able to 

market it as a short-cut. He felt that things about the proposal were just 

being made up and weren’t being looked at clearly.

Melanie Ragharan, 2122 Ascot Road, Ann Arbor, said she lives just 

across from Lambeth Road, which is a quiet residential neighborhood. 

She said the traffic on Ascot Road is low, as are noise levels and 

pollution, and that that is why they bought their house in this 

neighborhood 18 years ago. She said there are senior citizens and 

children who live in this neighborhood, and the senior citizens take walks 

throughout the neighborhood and the children play on the streets all the 

time. She said they care about these things and creating access to Ann 

Arbor-Saline Road will make it dangerous and will add light pollution from 

headlights directly into their family room. She said their neighborhood 

would be irrevocably altered by the proposed plan, and the neighborhood 

would no longer be what they expected when they purchased their home. 

She said she is surprised that the project doesn’t require a traffic impact 

study. She said the green area that is proposed to have the access 

cut-through is the last remaining ash tree area that is heavily wooded in 

their neighborhood, and for all these reasons she and her family and 

neighbors are opposed to the access.  

William Pollard, 2139 Ascot Road, Ann Arbor, said he grew up in this 

house, which was the original house of the subdivision, and grew up 

always hearing that the Lansdowne neighborhood would never be 

connected to Lambeth and would be blocked from Ann Arbor-Saline 

Page 4City of Ann Arbor



December 2, 2014Planning Commission, City Formal Minutes - Final

Road. He said the traffic on Ann Arbor-Saline Road is so bad that people 

will much rather go to Lambeth, and he doesn’t want to see additional 

traffic in the neighborhood. He was also surprised to hear that trees will be 

cut down from the wooded area that his house backs up to, adding that 

people had even been tagging trees in his backyard without getting his 

approval to even access his property, and he doesn’t want to lose any 

trees. He said on football Saturdays the neighborhood is all parked up 

and people are trying to find ways out and they don’t need more traffic.

Nancy Yalonen, 487 Village Oaks Court, Ann Arbor, said she and her 

husband have lived there for 24 years, and they live at the low end so 

stormwater ends up in their yard. She said they support detention 

because they need a way to control this and they have watched their 

backyard fill and flood with 4-5 feet of water, before it continues on to the 

other neighbors. She said she wants the Commission to know it is 

frightening and needs to stop.

Brad Moore, 4844 Jackson Road, Suite 150, Ann Arbor, architect for the 

project, said the correct term for explaining the project should be “active 

adult” or what was previously known as empty nesters (not necessarily 

seniors). He clarified that the Fire Department has said that two entrances 

are not required, but would be preferred. He said the characterization of a 

cut-through is not valid as there will not be any one running through this 

site from Ann Arbor-Saline Road through the Lansdowne neighborhood, 

as it will have a gated controlled access point with a RF tag activation. He 

distributed a handout to the Commission saying that this gate is what is 

known as an estate entrance and will only be accessible with an RF card. 

He said the total traffic trips during peak hour are between 24-25 per 

industry standards, and the Traffic Engineer indicates that only 4-5 would 

use the Lambeth Drive as all the common destinations are out Ann Arbor 

Saline Road. He said his client feels it is important to have a secondary 

access to the site for emergency vehicles as well as for people to get in 

and out on game days when Ann Arbor Saline Road is not an option. He 

said there is no real short-cutting involved as the destinations are on the 

opposite sides of Lansdowne. He said he has been in discussion with the 

City Attorney in tweaking the Development Agreement to make sure that 

the access gate will have to be maintained at all times after the 

condominium association takes ownership of the property, and the City 

would close the gate should the condo association not maintain it. He 

said there is another gate from Ann Arbor Saline Road accessing the site 

with only residents being able to access the site. He said they work hard 

with other City departments to address other issues, such as the 

stormwater management of the site, adding that there are long-standing 

Page 5City of Ann Arbor



December 2, 2014Planning Commission, City Formal Minutes - Final

issues on this site and the on-going discussion is in regards to who will 

pay for it. He said the City would like to maintain the facility themselves 

so they can control how often it is dredged, cleaned up and make sure the 

outlet isn’t clogged. He said the facility is not one that holds water, but is 

dry, except in storm events, and will be screened with new vegetation, 

noting that the existing vegetation is mostly invasive and quite a few dead 

ash trees.

Scott Betzoldt, site engineer for project, said this project provides an 

opportunity for a regional detention for an area that is known to have 

significant flooding issues. He said the project is the confluence of 5 

properties upstream, some with detention, some developed, and some 

constructed with deficiencies from the approved plans. He said the 

Lansdowne neighborhood was not required to have detention at the time 

of their construction. He said the developer has agreed to provide a 

regional detention basin which is far in excess of the requirements for this 

development. He said this project would require 45,000 cubic feet of 

storage for its own impervious surface and stormwater management, and 

what they are providing is a basin that is in excess of 158,000 cubic feet, 

which will essentially reduce the discharge to the south to 1/8 of what it is 

today, which will afford a lot of peaceful sleep to the residents 

downstream, and will be a significant benefit to the community in this 

area. He said the City would maintain the system and details on the 

allocation to the project are still being worked out.

Chuck Wilkins, 2083 Ascot Road, Ann Arbor, said he has lived here for 

almost 40 years, and has seen a lot of things occur in the City over the 

years. He said in earlier talks, the Fire Department talked about access 

and mentioned a tear away gate and plastic mat where vegetation grows 

through them but they would still be able to access the area if and when 

needed. He said he thought this was a logical alternative. He shared the 

sentiments that added traffic would bring to their neighborhood but felt 

keeping the opportunity for emergency access was a good idea.

Mike Manz, 2147 Ascot, Ann Arbor, said the retention issue may be great 

and he is not convinced there will be no standing water given the wetlands 

in the area. He was mostly concerned with the access to Lambeth, noting 

there are 21 houses on their street and they would have the equivalent of 

71 driveways added to their street and his main concern is safety. He said 

as far as access, most of the traffic will want to go north on Ann Arbor 

Saline Road which will mean a difficult left turn so people will much rather 

go through the neighborhood which he predicted will happen. He asked 

the Commission to give his comments consideration.

Page 6City of Ann Arbor



December 2, 2014Planning Commission, City Formal Minutes - Final

John Nicklas, 2086 Mershon, Ann Arbor, said he is concerned about the 

access off Lambeth Way and in looking at the site plan, he noted that the 

vast majority of parking spaces, even the underground ones, have the 

quickest exit on to Lambeth which is the how people will exit and enter. He 

said the Fire Department can only access one side of the building; the 

south side does not have a roadway for access so if there were a fire on 

that side, they couldn’t get at it, so it would make sense to have roads on 

both sides. He said if the intent is to have the underground parking go out 

through Ann Arbor Saline Road the design should be closer to that road 

and not closest to Lambeth. He said it seems like the residents of this 

very nice development are not going to be seniors but young active 

people who have cars and are working. He said this isn’t just a problem for 

Ascot, but noted that the easiest way to get out of Lambeth is to go out on 

Seventh Street, close to Lawton School and Pioneer School, during 

access time when children are being transported and walking to and from 

school. He strongly urged the Commission to not allow the access to 

Lambeth.

Noting no further speakers, the Chair closed the public hearing, unless 

the item is postponed.

Moved by Clein, seconded by Adenekan, that the Ann Arbor City 

Planning Commission hereby recommends that the Mayor and City 

Council approve the 2250 Ann Arbor-Saline Road Annexation, R4B 

Multiple-Family Dwelling Zoning, Site Plan and Development 

Agreement, subject to preliminary plan approval by the Washtenaw 

County Water Resources Commissioner, and  

The Ann Arbor City Planning Commission hereby recommends that 

the Mayor and City Council approve the 2250 Ann Arbor Saline Road 

Wetland Use Permit, to remove up to 1,728 square feet of wetland 

area, and mitigation plan, including construction of at least 2,592 

square feet of new wetland, restoration and monitoring of the 

remaining wetland area.

COMMISSION DISCUSSION:

Woods asked if the Commission wanted to address the motions together 

or separately.

Clein said he felt they were well connected and interdependent; he asked 

for clarification of wording.

Page 7City of Ann Arbor



December 2, 2014Planning Commission, City Formal Minutes - Final

Kowalski clarified the wording.

Bona asked staff if the City rezoned the parcel to R4D and the proposed 

development didn’t get built, what would be the potential units that could 

be built on the site.

Kowalski responded that it would be pretty close to the proposed number 

of units being proposed.

Bona asked the petitioner about the character and definition of “active 

adult”, stating that the Master Plan recommends connecting this site to 

the adjacent neighborhood to access the schools and park. She asked 

about the people they will be marketing to and if there will be children and 

what aspects of this project appeal to them.

He said it would be possible for people with children to buy a 

condominium at this site, but they are marketing to empty nesters or 

those who are past parenting, but could be grandparents, and are close to 

retirement or post retirement. He said the site provides a location that is 

easily connected to shopping and recreation, mostly by non-motorized 

means. He said there are indoor and outdoor recreation amenities on site 

geared towards keeping physically active, and the plateau area shown as 

a volleyball court could be used for any activity in the future. He said the 

site is set up for people who do a lot of walking and they will be able to 

walk to nearby parks and non-motorized connections are important.

Bona said she appreciated the emphasis on walking and biking.

Bona asked why they would be providing 43 more parking spaces than 

required if they are marketing towards active adults.

Moore said these are people who are still dependent on cars and would 

have a second car as well as allowing for visitors.

Bona said she doesn’t buy it; if someone is an early retiree they can start 

sharing cars, noting that cars sit 95% of the time so it wouldn’t make 

sense to allow for that many extra parking spaces for active adults.

Clein said the proposed side setback seems to be less than what is 

required.

Kowalski said because of the building length and height there is 

additional setback requirement. He explained that the code allows 

Page 8City of Ann Arbor



December 2, 2014Planning Commission, City Formal Minutes - Final

offsetting or averaging of setbacks and reviewed the site plan layout with 

the Commission.

Clein confirmed that the proposed project meets the required code.

Kowalski said yes.

Clein asked about the traffic impact statement and if the determination 

was made by the City or the petitioner.

Kowalski said the petitioner submitted the required data, which was 

reviewed and analyzed by the City’s Traffic Engineer.

Clein asked if the City’s engineer checked the data and confirmed that a 

full traffic impact study is not required.

Kowalski said yes.

Clein asked if peak hour is the same as rush hour.

Kowalski said yes.

Clein asked about the Fire Department’s comments about suggested 

means of access to the site.

Kowalski said for 100 units or above, the requirement is for two access 

points, so for this 75 unit project it would not be required; however, the Fire 

Marshal stated in her review that she preferred having two access points 

from an overall safety service level, as well as being beneficial to the 

existing neighborhood.

Clein asked if there was discussion about access around the proposed 

building.

Kowalski said, yes, the Fire Marshal looks at that as well, noting that the 

petitioner would be adding a fire hydrant to the site, which would be close 

to the underground parking entrance.

Clein asked about the turning radius for fire trucks.

Kowalski said the plan had been revised from an earlier plan to address 

fire truck access.

Page 9City of Ann Arbor



December 2, 2014Planning Commission, City Formal Minutes - Final

Adenekan thanked the public who came to provide their concerns and 

comments, noting that public input is important. She asked Moore to 

explain why the connection on Lambeth is not a cut-through from Ann 

Arbor-Saline Road.

Moore said to prevent cut-through traffic from Ann Arbor-Saline Road and 

Lambeth, there are two traffic control access points that will have gates 

which are closed until a resident from the proposed development 

approaches, and they will have a radio frequency controlled fob on their 

keychain that will be recognized by that gate and open for them and close 

behind them. He said only those residents with radio frequency controlled 

fobs will be able to activate the gate, so there won’t be key codes that can 

be given out for others to use.

Adenekan asked out the removal of landmark trees.

Moore said the site has been used for football parking and the soil is 

compacted, which has left the existing trees on the site with root 

compression, so the trees are in decline. Mitigation trees will be planted 

throughout the site to replace the loss of the trees.

Adenekan asked whether the stormwater basin will be retention or 

detention and how deep it will be.

Moore said it is a detention basin and designed to hold water for a short 

period of time and let it gradually trickle out of the site. 

Betzoldt said a detention basin acts like a ziplock bag with a very small 

hole in the bottom, in your sink, and you were to fill it up rapidly with tap 

water. It releases the water at a slow rate, equal to the rate of the 

undeveloped run-off rate of the site.

Adenekan asked if there would be a fence around it.

Betzoldt said, no, and that the slopes are 5 to 1 with most water events 

filling up the pond ¼ to ½ of the way and discharging over a period of 

12-48 hours and begin to dry up again.

Mills asked about the plan in the packet that showed the sidewalk right 

along Ann Arbor Saline Road with a buffer.

Moore clarified that the plan she was referencing was a conceptual plan 

used from their Citizen Participation meeting and had evolved since that 

Page 10City of Ann Arbor



December 2, 2014Planning Commission, City Formal Minutes - Final

meeting, and the sidewalk has since been removed back away from the 

curb.

Kowalski explained that the site plan reduction showed the accurate 

location of the sidewalk.

Mills asked about the public easement for sidewalks.

Kowalski said the City is requesting this through the project, but it is not 

something that they can require.

Mills said she was torn over the connection, because she sees a benefit 

to the people in this neighborhood to be able to walk to Busch’s, but what 

she is hearing is the concern over added traffic, which she understands. 

She said she gets the point made about unfairness in that only those in 

the condo development will be able to use the access and she likes the 

idea of only allowing access for emergency vehicles, whether by pavers 

or a gate. She said having that there for future options would be her 

personal recommendation, and she didn’t think it should be for one-way 

access only. She said she had a question about the Master Plan calling 

for single-family, but said she would pass that off to someone else.

Briere said the Master Plan talks about linkages to Ascot Street and the 

parks, but in her mind she didn’t feel that those linkages needed to be 

vehicular linkages and that the Master Plan was mum on the issue, and 

that could be because the Master Plan is not recently written and the 

community’s expectations change over time. 

Briere asked the developer if what they were creating would be considered 

a gated community.

Moore said the access control is not at the front entrance, but midway 

through the site, which allows for visitors to access the site and park, so 

the project is not considered “gated”. He reviewed the proposed plan with 

the Commission.

Briere said gated communities make her feel very uncomfortable, and 

she doesn’t care for the hint of elitism that they seem to imply, and she 

doesn’t believe they add sufficient security as much as residents might 

think.

Moore said in this project they are intended as a way to avoid cut-through 

traffic, as stated by the neighbors.

Page 11City of Ann Arbor



December 2, 2014Planning Commission, City Formal Minutes - Final

Briere said she has talked to City staff about the detention basin and 

understands they are aware of the interest in starting construction to help 

take care of detention problems in this entire neighborhood, and she 

thanked the developer for taking on the efforts of designing the basin to 

handle such a large capacity and said she appreciates their willingness in 

this matter.

Moore added that they are making adjustments to the development 

agreement that will allow the City to construct the detention basin early 

next year, even if they are not ready to begin construction at that time.

Briere said she appreciates that the City will be doing the maintenance, 

since condominium associations often find it difficult to take on the issues 

that might arise from these detention basins. She said she doesn’t object 

to the concept of stacked dwelling units, but is very dissatisfied with the 

connectivity that the developer and petitioner are pursuing with the 

existing neighborhood. She said if we built the City on a grid pattern, 

every neighborhood would be connected to everybody, but most of the 

City is not. She said she has yet to see neighborhoods openly willing to 

connect with new developments, noting that we, as a Planning 

Commission, aren’t encouraging these connections. She said we aren’t 

seeing suggestions that Placid Way be connected to Nixon Road or that 

the Northsky development be connected to Larkspur. She said when 

these connections are not required for larger projects she is hard pressed 

to understand why they should be for smaller projects.

Moore said there are unique circumstances when people can’t get out 

onto Ann Arbor-Saline Road during football Saturdays because of 

overwhelming traffic; situations that other neighborhoods don’t have to 

deal with.

Briere said that is why she supports the connection concept for 

emergency vehicle access, and she believed the City would see a ripple 

effect on the neighboring streets with added traffic.

Peters asked if pervious pavement had been considered within the 

development, considering the water issues on the site. He also asked if 

alternative internal routing had been considered for the development 

rather than through the subdivision and if an alternative site had been 

considered for the placement of the volleyball court so not to add the risk 

of pushing silt into the detention basin nearby.

Page 12City of Ann Arbor



December 2, 2014Planning Commission, City Formal Minutes - Final

Moore said the volleyball court is a level grassy field for games and the 

detention area will be a mowed grassy area, and part of the lawn. He said 

the circle drive was rejected because they are only allowed one drive onto 

Ann Arbor Saline Road, along with the topography of the steeper slopes 

on the western sides. On the permeable pavers, he explained they had 

soil borings done that showed heavy clay soils that are not suitable for 

infiltration.

Franciscus thanked the public speakers for attending. She said if there is 

a gate, she would like to encourage a bike or pedestrian path and 

walkthrough.

Moore said that currently there is no path through the site but they have 

proposed to allow a pedestrian connection whether gated or un-gated.

Franciscus asked about the proposed entrance to the parking area and if 

they had considered using the other side of the building that would be 

closer to Ann Arbor Saline Road.

Moore that the topography is higher on that side so they have pretty much 

created a 2-story building with a drive-out basement. 

Adenekan asked about the timeframe and duration of the construction of 

the project.

Moore said construction and utility drawings would be 6 months, with 

construction estimated to take 16-18 months.

Adenekan asked about bedroom types.

Moore said there would be 2- and 3-bedroom but mostly 2-bedroom 

types.

Woods said she is not convinced that the drive on Lambeth is the way to 

go, and shared the concerns about the one-way proposal for the gated 

design. She said she understood the Fire Department’s desire to have 

another access to the site but was very concerned about increased traffic 

into the residential neighborhood and so close to the nearby schools. 

She asked staff for options available to the Commission in moving 

forward on the proposal before them, specifically if they should want to 

express their dislike of the connection.

Rampson said the Commission could ask for a postponement on the 

Page 13City of Ann Arbor



December 2, 2014Planning Commission, City Formal Minutes - Final

item and request staff to work with the developer as well as the Fire 

Department on other access options. She said another option would be to 

move the project forward this evening with their recommendations being 

‘subject to’ items. She suggested that it the Commission moved to 

postpone action of the development that they might consider moving the 

annexation forward, as they have done on other developments, since that 

takes some time as well as knowing that the City’s Systems Planning 

Department is eager to move forward with the detention basin and it would 

be easier if the parcel were in the City’s jurisdiction.

Woods pointed out the detention facility was also in the last Capital 

Improvements Plan.

Bona said if the site would be proposed for single-family detached 

homes, she would strongly be in favor of a vehicular connection, but as 

soon as the proposal goes to where it is with higher density and closer to 

Ann Arbor-Saline Road, she became uncomfortable with the access 

connection impacting the quieter residential neighborhood. She said she 

would be supportive of an emergency-only access and removing all other 

gates, adding that it is not Ann Arbor to have gated communities, gated 

complexes, so she would like to discourage that. She said she would like 

to address the sidewalks through the site for neighboring residents to 

have a clearer straighter path and she would like to get rid of the parking 

and to stop focusing on cars and focus more on access by walking and 

biking. She said she will recommend postponement but when the plan 

comes back she would like to see a bigger picture of the internal 

sidewalks as well as the crosswalk. She said there have already been 

pedestrian issues in this corridor and she would like to hear of possible 

ways to make this work. 

Woods asked if the postponement would be on both motions.

Bona said she would move the annexation forward.

Peters asked if they separate the annexation motion and move it forward, 

would they also have to zone it.

Rampson clarified that the annexation would move forward to the State, 

and the zoning cannot move forward until the annexation is complete so it 

can catch up at a later date.

Woods added parcels can be zoned up to two years after being annexed.

Page 14City of Ann Arbor



December 2, 2014Planning Commission, City Formal Minutes - Final

Clein said he agrees with the interpretation of the Master Plan and the 

outlook on the corridors being different. He said he felt if the gates were a 

safety issue he felt it could be addressed through a break-away gate and 

a driving surface that is more for emergency uses. He said the gates also 

rub the wrong way and look a little exclusive and should belong in other 

areas, not in Ann Arbor. He suggested the best location for a new sidewalk 

could be skirted along the southern side if grading allows. He was in favor 

of moving the annexation forward and postponement of the other motion.

On a friendly amendment by Briere, accepted by the mover and 

seconder, the motion on the floor was amended to read: the Ann 

Arbor City Planning Commission hereby recommends that the 

Mayor and City Council approve the 2250 Ann Arbor-Saline Road 

Annexation.  On a roll call, the vote on the amended motion was as 

follows with the Chair declaring the motion carried.

Yeas: Wendy Woods, Eleanore Adenekan, Kenneth Clein, Sabra 

Briere, Jeremy Peters, Sofia Franciscus, Sarah Mills, and 

Bonnie Bona

8 - 

Nays: 0   

Moved by Bona, seconded by Clein, that the Ann Arbor City 

Planning Commission hereby approve the 2250 Ann Arbor Saline 

R4B Multiple-Family Dwelling Zoning, Site Plan and Development 

Agreement, subject to preliminary plan approval by the Washtenaw 

County Water Resources Commissioner, and  

The Ann Arbor City Planning Commission hereby recommends that 

the Mayor and City Council approve the 2250 Ann Arbor Saline Road 

Wetland Use Permit, to remove up to 1,728 square feet of wetland 

area, and mitigation plan, including construction of at least 2,592 

square feet of new wetland, restoration and monitoring of the 

remaining wetland area.

Mills moved to postpone, seconded by Peters.  On a voice vote, the 

Chair declared the motion carried.

Page 15City of Ann Arbor


